

CONFIRMED

MINUTES

SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING

Held

10 June 2020

Αt

Shire of Dardanup
ADMINISTRATION CENTRE EATON
1 Council Drive - EATON

This document is available in alternative formats such as: $\sim \quad \text{Large Print}$

Electronic Format [disk or emailed]
Upon request.

DocuSign Envelop	e ID: 48B7D2A0-28DD-4005-ACBA-E126FCB04328
Con	IFIRMED MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING HELD 10 JUNE 2020
	VISION STATEMENT
	"Provide effective leadership in encouraging balanced growth and development of the Shire while recognizing the diverse needs of our communities."

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1	DECLA	RATION OF OPENING/ANNOUNCEMENTS OF VISITORS	1
2	RECOF	D OF ATTENDANCE/APOLOGIES/LEAVE OF ABSENCE PREVIOUSLY APPROVED	2
	2.1	Attendance	2
	2.2	Apologies	2
3	RESPO	NSE TO PREVIOUS PUBLIC QUESTIONS TAKEN ON NOTICE	2
4	PUBLI	C QUESTION TIME	3
5	APPLI	CATIONS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE	3
6	PETITI	ONS/DEPUTATIONS/PRESENTATIONS	3
	6.1	Mrs Fiona Moriarty (14 Prout Road, Ferguson) – Regarding the Draft Annual Budget 2020-21	3
	6.2	Anita de Montigny Olsthoorn (59 Richards Road, Ferguson) – Regarding the Draft Annual Budget 2020-21	5
7	CONFI	RMATION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING	6
	7.1	Ordinary Meeting Held 27 May 2020	6
8	ANNO	UNCEMENTS BY PRESIDING MEMBER WITHOUT DISCUSSION	6
9	ANNO	UNCEMENTS OF MATTERS FOR WHICH MEETING MAY BE CLOSED	6
10	QUEST	TIONS BY MEMBERS OF WHICH DUE NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN	6
11	DECLA	RATION OF INTEREST	7
12	REPOR	RTS OF OFFICERS AND COMMITTEES	9
	12.1	Title: Corporate Business Plan 2020/21 – 2023/24	9
	12.2	Title: Draft Annual Budget 2020-21	14
13	ELECT	ED MEMBERS MOTIONS OF WHICH PREVIOUS NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN	32
14	NEW E	BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE INTRODUCED BY DECISION OF MEETING	32
15	PUBLI	C QUESTION TIME	32
16	MATT	ERS BEHIND CLOSED DOORS	32
17	CLOSU	RE OF MEETING	32

			 _	
CO		I / I	 ,,,	
$\mathbf{L}\mathbf{U}$	UI	ı	w	LE

Advocacy When Council advocates on its own behalf or on behalf of its community to

another level of government / body /agency.

Executive/Strategic The substantial direction setting and oversight role of the Council e.g.

Adopting plans and reports, accepting tenders, directing operations, setting

and amending budgets.

Legislative Includes adopting local laws, town planning schemes and policies.

Review When Council reviews decisions made by Officers.

Quasi-Judicial When Council determines an application/matter that directly affects a

person's rights and interests. The Judicial character arises from the obligations

to abide by the principles of natural justice.

Examples of Quasi-Judicial authority include town planning applications, building licences, applications for other permits/licences (e.g.: under Health Act, Dog Act or Local Laws) and other decisions that may be appealable to the

State Administrative Tribunal.

DISCLAIMER

"Any statement, comment or decision made at a Council or Committee meeting regarding any application for an approval, consent or licence, including a resolution of approval, is not effective as an approval of any application and must not be relied upon as such.

Any person or entity that has an application before the Shire must obtain, and should only rely on, written notice of the Shire's decision and any conditions attaching to the decision, and cannot treat as an approval anything said or done at a Council or Committee meeting.

Any advice provided by an employee of the Shire on the operation of a written law, or the performance of a function by the Shire, is provided in the capacity of an employee, and to the best of that person's knowledge and ability. It does not constitute, and should not be relied upon, as a legal advice or representation by the Shire. Any advice on a matter of law, or anything sought to be relied upon as a representation by the Shire should be sought in writing and should make clear the purpose of the request."

	RISK ASSESSMENT		
	NISK ASSESSIVIENT		
Inherent Risk	The level of risk in place in order to achieve the objectives of the Council and before actions are taken to alter the risk's impact or likelihood.		
Residual Risk	The remaining level of risk following the development and implementation of Council's response.		
Strategic Context	ontext These risks are associated with achieving Council's long term objectives.		
Operational Context	t These risks are associated with the day-to-day activities of the Council.		
Project Context	Project risk has two main components:		
	 Direct refers to the risks that may arise as a result of project, which may prevent the Council from meeting its objectives. Indirect refers to the risks which threaten the delivery of project outcomes. 		

SHIRE OF DARDANUP

MINUTES OF THE SHIRE OF DARDANUP SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 10 JUNE 2020, AT SHIRE OF DARDANUP – ADMINISTRATION CENTRE EATON, COMMENCING AT 2.30PM.

1 DECLARATION OF OPENING/ANNOUNCEMENTS OF VISITORS

The Presiding Member, Cr. M T Bennett declared the meeting open at 2.36pm, welcomed those in attendance and referred to the Disclaimer, Acknowledgement of Country, Emergency Procedure and the Affirmation of Civic Duty and Responsibility on behalf of Councillors and Officers:

Acknowledgement of Country

The Shire of Dardanup wishes to acknowledge that this meeting is being held on the traditional lands of the Noongar people. In doing this, we recognise and respect their continuing culture and the contribution they make to the life of this region and pay our respects to their elders, past, present and emerging.

Affirmation of Civic Duty and Responsibility

Councillors and Officers of the Shire of Dardanup collectively declare that we will duly, faithfully, honestly and with integrity fulfil the duties of our respective office and positions for all the people in the district according to the best of our judgement and ability. We will observe the Shire's Code of Conduct and Standing Orders to ensure efficient, effective and orderly decision making within this forum.

Emergency Procedure

In the event of an emergency, please follow the instructions of the Chairperson who will direct you to the safest exit route. Once outside, please proceed to the Assembly Area points located to the western side of the front office car park near the skate park and gazebo where we will meet (and complete a roll call).

2 RECORD OF ATTENDANCE/APOLOGIES/LEAVE OF ABSENCE PREVIOUSLY APPROVED

2.1 Attendance

Cr. Michael Bennett - Shire President

Cr. Peter Robinson - Deputy Shire President

Cr. Janice Dow - Elected Member
Cr. Tyrrell Gardiner - Elected Member
Cr. Mark Hutchinson - Elected Member
Cr. Carmel Boyce - Elected Member
Cr. Stacey Gillespie - Elected Member
Cr. Patricia Perks - Elected Member

Mr André Schönfeldt - Chief Executive Officer

Mr Phil Anastasakis - Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Ms Susan Oosthuizen - Director Sustainable Development

Mr Luke Botica - Director Infrastructure
Mrs Natalie Hopkins - Manager Financial Services
Mrs Ella Rafferty - Executive Support Officer

Mrs Donna Bailye - PA – Deputy Chief Executive Officer

2.2 Apologies

Cr. Luke Davies - Elected Member

3 RESPONSE TO PREVIOUS PUBLIC QUESTIONS TAKEN ON NOTICE

None.

4 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

None.

5 APPLICATIONS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE

None.

6 PETITIONS/DEPUTATIONS/PRESENTATIONS

Note: Petitions/Deputations/Presentations commenced [2.39pm].

6.1 Mrs Fiona Moriarty (14 Prout Road, Ferguson) – Regarding the Draft Annual Budget 2020-21

Note: The following Deputation information was received by the Shire on the 8 June 2020 and distributed to Councillors on the 10 June 2020 prior to the Special Meeting of Council. Mrs Moriarty was not in attendance:

The Shire appears to be failing to address ratepayers concerns (expressed widely through the community on multiple platforms) that spending is not being reduced long term.

This draft budget seems to have been drafted based on outdated criteria which needs to be reassessed due to a changed world post COVID19.

It is also noticeable that in the past our councillors have been predominantly asked how they would like to SPEND ratepayers' money. I would like to propose that from now on they are predominantly asked how they can SAVE ratepayers money.

As we all know the big ticket items are the most effective way to save money. While the council have actioned a small reduction in staff costs, much more needs to be done in that area - long term.

Mr Bennett continues to refer publicly of the expected increase in staffing levels - "25 new jobs" as a result of the proposed new civic building, and, "increases to staffing levels" requiring more office space in the future. Clearly this indicates a lack of intent to reduce staffing costs. I am doubtful - along with many other ratepayers - that this council with this leadership are actively pursuing any long term goal of reducing staff costs.

Staff costs do not end with the items included in the shires staff costs report. There is also many items allocated to different columns - commonly fuel cards, phones, insurance and IT support which all go hand in hand with staffing levels. But the major extra cost is that every employee requires office space, desk, computer and all the technical support that goes with that. Every square meter of office space costs money and in the new build that will include depreciation. Every member of staff effectively increases overheads.

While there may be a need to rethink staffing when Wanju is well and truly underway, now is the best time to streamline and work on efficiencies.

The biggest budget item that could be reduced is without doubt the proposed civic building and skateboard park, followed by many other minor projects such as the dog park fencing. While there may be some increase in Shire population when Wanju gets going - the increased ratepayer base to cover the costs of this build is still many many years off - if ever!

In the meantime the massive inequity to existing ratepayers will continue unabated unless the council massively reduce the budget for this build, **and** postpone its commencement until Wanju actually starts to produce more ratepayers to share the burden.

I understand now that not only have the existing ratepayers provided funds for the savings component of the building fund, BUT, the **yearly depreciation** of the finished building which is recorded by shires as a loss must also be balanced out in the shire budget. I understand this is achieved by the allocation of a percentage of rates received to a reserve fund. **Rates will inevitably need to be increased to achieve this.**

Again - levies must be RAISED in order to offset the loss through depreciation.

So over the possibly thirty year period of depreciation the local ratepayers would not only have provided savings to start the build of the civic building **and** paid interest **and** capital on the loan for the build, but they will **ALSO PAY** for the entire build all over again as it is depreciated over the coming years.

It becomes effectively a \$32 million dollar expense to the ratepayers. If this doesn't sound scandalous then it does sound both grossly extravagant and unjust.

Correct me if I am wrong but having had this explained to me from an old contact with many years at executive level in both shire and corporate finance, it seems to be the general idea.

This is massively unfair and a completely unreasonable burden on ratepayers who literally have no idea that this is being inflicted on them - LONG TERM - years before the assistance of increased ratepayers numbers from Wanju. This will mostly be the burden of existing ratepayers.

The Proposal that has been widely circulated this month, dated May 2020, does not seem to acknowledge the changing face of both retail space demand or the oversupply of professional / leasable office space. I believe that over 900sqm of this space in the proposed Civic building will remain largely unoccupied. If the councillors could present current expressions of interest in leasing these two spaces - post COVID19 - I could stand corrected. However I believed any expressions of interest are, of course, merely just that, and the expected income for these spaces have been hugely over estimated.

At the same time there are further assertions that once interest payments have ended, this income to the shire may be worth over \$600,000 pa. But the paperwork also says that this extra office space is likely to be used by increased levels of staff as the Shire population goes up. So the claim that there will be an income from this extra space is arguable as you can not have both leasable space and the same space occupied by your own staff.

I would also like to see previous versions of this Proposal as I do not believe that it has been revised sufficiently as a result of the POST COVID19 situation.

The economists seem to agree that there will be a recession - possibly the worst for many decades. There will also be reduced immigration. Therefore it follows there will be reduced investment and demand in new homes and new suburbs.

With many other economical and social issues affecting us I believe that the area of Wanju will likely be postponed, maybe by a decade. Developers and investors will all be cautious, and likely hold back on their input into Wanju's construction. Those new Wanju ratepayers will not start to help pay for this civic building until the Proposed Civic building has largely been paid off by the existing ratepayers.

The whole project is therefore premature.

I strongly urge the councillors to revise their strategy regarding this build, both radically reducing its budget **and** postponing its commencement by several years until it lines up with Wanju's actual second stage of development, and not presume the timings and projections of Wanju will remain unchanged.

RECEIVED

6.2 <u>Anita de Montigny Olsthoorn (59 Richards Road, Ferguson) – Regarding the Draft Annual Budget</u> 2020-21

Note: The following Deputation information was received by the Shire on the 8 June 2020 and distributed to Councillors on the 10 June 2020 prior to the Special Meeting of Council. Mrs de Montigny Olsthoorn was not in attendance:

To the President and Councillors of Dardanup Shire and Shire CEO,

Following my last letter which has not been taken into consideration by the Shire President, I would like to ask the Shire Council to organise a meeting extraordinaire for all the rate payers of the Dardanup Shire to allow people to understand what is happening.

I already mentioned in my previous letter what I think about the new Shire building and library project, so I will not repeat myself.

I received myself an email from Deputy Shire President Peter Robinson, in which he mentioned that I needed a clear explanation of the project and so he sent me a "26 pages document...." which gives "the history, the facts and the independent analysis of our Admin library project". He mentions "it is my personal opinion that whilst we have not explained the project properly to the public beforehand this document should help you to see where we are coming from and how what we are proposing stacks up. Part of the problem is that as councillors we do get to consider the facts, data, evidence ... all along the way (it goes back to before I first joined in 2011) but we are probably remiss in not relating them to others."

This project has been in the making for a very long time and I do not doubt that the Councillors thought it through over the years. However our daily reality has changed since 2011 and this has been ignored in the thought process. Nobody could preview Covid 19. This is now a time of RECESSION, not a time of spending and dreaming of a great future. We need to SAVE money, rate payers money!

Beside this big building, Skateboard Park and other luxuries, Mr Bennet sees a future where he wants to increase Shire employees by 25 instead of reducing Shire expenditure. There are plans for a whole new city which might not been built for several years due to the economic climate.

In the meantime, we, the rate payers are forced to pay for an enormous building and other projects, when our rates are already astronomically high, compared to other shires.

I think there are two solutions to this extravaganza:

Either you reduce the size of this building and build in stages so that we do not need a 6 million loan for the moment,

Or if you want to force the project through, you behave in a FAIR way and first send out documentation and explain to the ratepayers the big debt you want the Shire to go into and how much more rates they will have to pay in the coming 10 years. Then organise a meeting extraordinaire to give them the possibility to express their opinion on the subject; after all it is their money you want to spend and it is not of a small amount.

(Amendment to Deputation)

As Deputy Shire President Robinson mentioned, councillors are probably remiss in not relating to the general public. This is why he was kind enough to send me this 26 pages document about the new Shire building.

RECEIVED

7 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

7.1 Ordinary Meeting Held 27 May 2020

Note: The Minutes of the Ordinary Council Meeting held on Wednesday, 27 May 2020 will be confirmed at the next Ordinary Council Meeting on Wednesday, 24 June 2020.

8 ANNOUNCEMENTS BY PRESIDING MEMBER WITHOUT DISCUSSION

None.

9 ANNOUNCEMENTS OF MATTERS FOR WHICH MEETING MAY BE CLOSED

None.

10 QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS OF WHICH DUE NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN

None.

11 DECLARATION OF INTEREST

"Members should fill in Disclosure of Interest forms for items in which they have a financial, proximity or impartiality interest and forward these to the Presiding Member before the meeting commences."

Key Management Personnel (which includes Elected Members, CEO and Directors) are reminded of their requirement to disclose biannually transactions between Council and related parties in accordance with Council Policy CP039.

Note: Chief Executive Officer, Mr André Schönfeldt made the following Declarations of Interest:

 Mr. André Schönfeldt declared a Impartiality Interest in "Item 12.2 – Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" as his family attends and are patrons of the Eaton Family Centre and Toy Library.

Discussion:

Shire President, M T Bennett read aloud the following Declarations of Interest provided to the Chief Executive Officer prior to the commencement of the meeting:

- Cr. S Gillespie declared a Proximity Interest in 12.2 "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21"
 Resolution G as she is a resident on Pratt Road, Eaton and the road is mentioned in the Road
 Asset Management Plan.
- Cr. S Gillespie declared a Proximity Interest in 12.2 "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" Resolution H as she is a resident on Pratt Road, Eaton and the Eaton Bowling Club is in the BAMP and she lives near the Eaton Bowling Club.
- Cr. S Gillespie declared a Proximity Interest in 12.2 "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" Resolution I as she is a resident on Pratt Road, Eaton adjacent to the Eaton Foreshore.
- Cr. M Bennett declared a Proximity Interest in 12.2 "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21"
 Resolution G as he owns property adjacent to the Millar's Creek pathway.
- Cr. M Bennett declared an Impartially Interest in 12.2 "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" Resolution H as he is a patron of the Eaton Bowling Club.
- Cr. M Bennett declared an Impartially Interest in 12.2 "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21"
 Resolution H as he is a life member of the Eaton Junior Football Club.
- Cr. M Bennett declared a Proximity Interest in 12.2 "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21"
 Resolution I as he owns property adjacent to the Pratt Road car park.
- Cr. C N Boyce declared a Proximity Interest in 12.2 "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" Resolution G as she owns property with a common boundary with development planned for the end of Watson Street, Eaton.
- Cr P Robinson declared an Impartiality Interest in 12.2 "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" as he is a volunteer member of the Crooked Brook Forest Assn committee. Schedule 8 Education and Welfare contains an annual grant of \$2,000 to the CBFA. Refer to Item 12.2

- Cr P Robinson declared an Impartiality Interest in 12.2 "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" as he is a volunteer member of the Joshua Crooked Brook Volunteer Bush Fire Brigade. Schedule 5 law, order and public safety contains an allocation under recurrent expenditure for brigade support. A share of \$131,700. Refer to Item 12.2.
- Cr P Robinson declared a Financial Interest in 12.2 "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" as he is a
 volunteer Fire Control Officer for the Joshua Crooked Brook Volunteer Bush Fire Brigade.
 Schedule 5 5 law, order and public safety contains an allocation for the FCOs. As a
 consequence, he has a financial interest in the matter. He has a letter of participation
 approval from the Deputy Director General Regulation dated 23 August 2019 for a one
 year period. Cr. P S Robinson advises he will be able to remain in the room and participate.
 Refer to Item 12.2

Shire President, M T Bennett asked Councillors and staff if there were any further Declarations of Interest to be made. There were no further Declarations of Interest.

12 REPORTS OF OFFICERS AND COMMITTEES

12.1 Title: Corporate Business Plan 2020/21 – 2023/24

Reporting Department: Executive

Reporting Officer: Mr Phil Anastasakis - Deputy CEO

Legislation: Local Government Act 1995

Overview

Council has previously considered and endorsed on the 27 May 2020 [OCM 146-20] the draft Corporate Business Plan 2020/21 - 2023/24 through the Integrated Planning Committee. This report presents the final Corporate Business Plan 2020/21 - 2023/24 for Council adoption.

Background

Council adopted its reviewed and updated Strategic Community Plan 2018 – 2028 on the 28 March 2018, which runs for a 10 year period. This review was conducted 4 years after the development of its first Strategic Community Plan and is consistent with the Department of Local Government, Sport & Cultural Industries Integrated Planning and Reporting Framework and legislative requirements.

A Strategic Community Plan Internal Review was conducted and endorsed by Council on the 27 May 2020 as part of the legislated requirement to conduct an internal review of the Strategic Community Plan two years after the full review was conducted in 2018.

The Shire of Dardanup Strategic Community Plan reflects a vision for the future and is the principal strategic guide for future planning and activities. Based on the community engagement, the Plan has set a vision for the Shire's future and captured the community's aspirations and values.

Achieving the community's vision and Shire's strategic objectives requires development of actions to address each strategy contained within the Strategic Community Plan. In addition, achieving these Strategies may require a series of actions over time as they may not be able to be achieved concurrently taking into account limited financial resources. Careful operational planning and prioritisation is required due to the limited availability of resources. This planning process is formalised in the Corporate Business Plan.

• Corporate Business Plan

The Corporate Business Plan (CBP) contains details of the actions and resources (human and financial) to achieve each strategy. It is a four year plan which acts as an organisational guide to the Council and management.

The financial capacity to undertake these tasks is evidenced in the long term financial plan for the period. This long term financial planning provides an assurance the actions contained in the Corporate Business Plan can be adequately resourced over the next 4 years and highlight the long term consequences of the application of human and financial resources to undertaking various projects.

The Corporate Business Plan 2020/21 - 2023/24 is to be reviewed annually to assess the progress of projects and realign actions and priorities with current information and funding availability. The first year of the Corporate Business Plan is 'sliced off' to form the basis of the draft annual budget for consideration by the Council.

• Linkage with Informing Strategies and Service Plans

The Corporate Business Plan is informed by three other major plans developed in response to the Department of Local Government's Integrated Planning and Reporting Framework. The Asset Management Plans, Long Term Financial Plan, and Workforce Plan inform the Council as to its resource options and financial circumstances.

The draft Corporate Business Plan was endorsed at the Integrated Planning Committee meeting on the 20 May 2020, and subsequently adopted by Council on the 27 May 2020.

This report recommends Council adopt the final Shire of Dardanup Corporate Business Plan 2020/21 – 2023/24 (refer to Appendix SCM: 12.1A – under separate cover).

Legal Implications

Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996:

19DA. Corporate business plans, requirements for (Acts. 5.56)

- (1) A local government is to ensure that a corporate business plan is made for its district in accordance with this regulation in respect of <u>each financial year</u> after the financial year ending 30 June 2013.
- (2) A corporate business plan for a district is to cover the period specified in the plan, which is to be <u>at least 4 financial years</u>.
- (3) A corporate business plan for a district is to
 - (a) set out, consistently with any relevant priorities set out in the strategic community plan for the district, a local government's priorities for dealing with the objectives and aspirations of the community in the district; and
 - (b) govern a local government's internal business planning by expressing a local government's priorities by reference to operations that are within the capacity of the local government's resources; and
 - (c) develop and integrate matters relating to resources, including asset management, workforce planning and long term financial planning.
- (4) A local government is to <u>review the current corporate business plan for its district every year.</u>
- (5) A local government may modify a corporate business plan, including extending the period the plan is made in respect of and modifying the plan if required because of modification of the local government's strategic community plan.
- (6) A Council is to consider a corporate business plan, or modifications of such a plan, submitted to it and is to determine* whether or not to adopt the plan or the modifications. *Absolute majority required.
- (7) If a corporate business plan is, or modifications of a corporate business plan are, adopted by the Council, the plan or modified plan applies to the district for the period specified in the plan.

Strategic Community Plan

- Strategy 1.3.1 Implement the Integrated Planning and Reporting Framework including the Long Term Financial Plan, Workforce Plan, Asset Management Plans and Corporate Business Plan. (Service Priority: High).
- Action 1.3.1.2 Review and update annually the Shire of Dardanup Corporate Business Plan.

Environment - None.

Precedents

The previous Shire of Dardanup four year Corporate Business Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 was reviewed and adopted last year in accordance with legislative requirements, and formed the foundation of the current Shire of Dardanup Corporate Business Plan 2020/21 to 2023/24.

Budget Implications

Revenue and expenditure forecasts for the next four years are incorporated within the current Shire of Dardanup Corporate Business Plan 2020/21 to 2023/24.

<u>Budget – Whole of Life Cost</u> - None.

Council Policy Compliance

Council Policy *CPO18 – Corporate Business Plan & Long Term Financial Plan* notes that each year with the best endeavours Council aims to consider a draft budget for adoption by the end of June. To achieve this aim the draft Corporate Business Plan (budget) needs to be compiled within the last weeks of May or early June.

The Policy notes that year 1 of the Corporate Business Plan shall inform the development of the draft Annual Budget utilising the forecast rate change, loan projections, asset management plans, capital works, operating income and expenditure and reserve transfers.

Risk Assessment

The Risk Management Governance Framework has been considered in arriving at the officer recommendation. Please refer to (Appendix SCM: 12.1B) for full assessment document.

Tier 2 – 'Low' or 'Moderate' Inherent Risk.			
Risk Event	Corporate Business Plan 2020/21 – 2023/24		
Inherent Risk Rating (prior to treatment or control) Moderate (5 - 11)			
Risk Action Plan (treatment or controls proposed)	As the Inherent Risk Rating is below 12, this is not applicable.		
Residual Risk Rating (after treatment or controls)	As the Inherent Risk Rating is below 12, this is not applicable.		
	Legal and Compliance	Legislative requirements and compliance determine the need for the production of Corporate Business Plan.	
Risk Category Assessed Against	Financial	The financial implications associated within the elements of the Corporate Business Plan can affect the financial sustainability of Council.	
	Reputational	The inclusion of projects and works within the various plans within the Corporate Business Plan build community expectation.	

Officer Comment

The short to medium term priorities within Council's Strategic Community Plan are translated into services and facilities that are delivered to the community through the Corporate Business Plan. This ensures strategic priorities are translated into real actions. The Council's four year Corporate Business Plan is reviewed annually and reported to community through the Annual Report.

The 2020/21 Corporate Business Plan includes updated financial projections based on the cost of providing various services and facilities to the community, which are outlined and detailed within the Long Term Financial Plan, Workforce Plan, Asset Management Plans and Service Strategies.

The Corporate Business Plan (CBP) forecasts an increase in rates of 0% for 2020/21, with further forecasts of 3.0%, 4.0% and 4.0 for years 2, 3, and 4 of the Plan.

The WA Treasury Corporation and the Australian Bureau of Statistics have reported the Consumer Price Index to remain low, which is reflected in the forecast of 2.25%, 2.25%, 2.5% and 2.5% over the four year period. These percentages, together with increases in the relevant WALGA cost index, have been used to apply an inflationary increase to various costs throughout the Plan.

Provision has been made in the Plan for a reduced Fair Work Australia minimum wage increase. As Council pays over the award an overall increase of 0% is forecast for 2020/21. An allocation of \$44,380 or 0.35% or has been made for performance increases, which are advancing employees to a higher level due to promotion, new qualifications, or above standard performance.

Details relating to the various Asset Management Plans, Workforce Plan and Strategic Financial Plan were included in the recent Integrated Planning Committee meeting held on the 20 May 2020, and subsequently endorsed by Council on the 27 May 2020 [OCM 146-20].

The Corporate Business Plan is designed to link to the objectives adopted in the Strategic Community Plan; readers will be able to see the links between the community aspirations and their implementation through the Corporate Business Plan.

This continues to provide Council with a fully integrating financial planning and reporting system that meets the legislated standards required by all Local Governments in Western Australia.

<u>Council Role</u> - Executive/Strategic.

<u>Voting Requirements</u> - Absolute Majority.

<u>Change to Officer Recommendation</u> - No Change.

OFFICER RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION & COUNCIL RESOLUTION

153-20 MOVED - Cr. P S Robinson SECONDED - Cr. T G Gardiner

THAT Council adopts the Shire of Dardanup 2020/21 to 2023/24 Corporate Business Plan (Appendix SCM: 12.1A – Under Separate Cover).

CARRIED 6/2
Absolute Majority

FOR THE MOTION	Ac	GAINST THE M OTION
Cr. M T Bennett	Cr	. J Dow
Cr. P S Robinson	Cr	. M Hutchinson
Cr. T G Gardiner		
Cr. C N Boyce		
Cr. P R Perks		
Cr. S L Gillespie		

12.2 Title: Draft Annual Budget 2020-21

Reporting Department: Corporate & Governance Directorate
Reporting Officer: Mr Phil Anastasakis - Deputy CEO

Mrs Natalie Hopkins - Manager Financial Services

Legislation: Local Government Act 1995

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Mr. ANDRÉ SCHÖNFELDT

Mr. André Schönfeldt declared a Impartiality Interest in "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" as his family attends and are patrons of the Eaton Family Centre and Toy Library.

Mr. André Schönfeldt declared a Proximity Interest in "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" as page 108 of the Annual Budget under Parks and Reserves includes maintenance to a reserve that adjoins his property. Mr. Schönfeldt remained in the room as a procedural motion was passed requesting that he remain in the room - Res 154-20.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Cr. M T BENNETT

- Cr. M Bennett declared a Proximity Interest in "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" Resolution G as he owns property adjacent to the Millar's Creek pathway.
- Cr. M Bennett declared an Impartially Interest in "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" Resolution

 H as he is a patron of the Eaton Bowling Club.
- Cr. M Bennett declared an Impartially Interest in "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" Resolution

 H as he is a life member of the Eaton Junior Football Club.
 - Cr. M Bennett declared a Proximity Interest in "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" Refer to Resolution I as he owns property adjacent to the Pratt Road car park.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Cr. C N BOYCE

Cr. C N Boyce declared a Proximity Interest in "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" as she owns property with a common boundary with development planned for the end of Watson Street, Eaton. Refer to Resolution G.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Cr. S L GILLESPIE

- Cr. S Gillespie declared a Proximity Interest in "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" Resolution G as she is a resident on Pratt Road, Eaton and the road is mentioned in the Road Asset Management Plan.
 - Cr. S Gillespie declared a Proximity Interest in "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" Resolution H as she is a resident on Pratt Road, Eaton and the Eaton Bowling Club is in the BAMP and she lives near the Eaton Bowling Club.
- Cr. S Gillespie declared a Proximity Interest in "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" Resolution I as she is a resident on Pratt Road, Eaton adjacent to the Eaton Foreshore.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Cr. P S ROBINSON

Cr P Robinson declared an Impartiality Interest in "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" as he is a volunteer member of the Crooked Brook Forest Assn committee. Schedule 8 Education and Welfare contains an annual grant of \$2,000 to the CBFA.

Cr P Robinson declared an Impartiality Interest in "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" as he is a volunteer member of the Joshua Crooked Brook Volunteer Bush Fire Brigade. Schedule 5 law, order and public safety contains an allocation under recurrent expenditure for brigade support. A share of \$131,700.

Cr P Robinson declared a Financial Interest in "Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" as he is a volunteer Fire Control Officer for the Joshua Crooked Brook Volunteer Bush Fire Brigade. Schedule 5 5 law, order and public safety contains an allocation for the FCOs. As a consequence, he has a financial interest in the matter. He has a letter of participation approval from the Deputy Director General – Regulation dated 23 August 2019 for a one year period. Cr. P S Robinson advises he will be able to remain in the room and participate.

Note: Below is a copy of the advice received from the Deputy Director General – Regulation of the Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries:

The Deputy Director General Regulation, Mr Michael Connolly has, under delegated authority from the Minister, approved the application under section 5.69(3)(b) of the Local Government Act 1995 (the Act) for Cr. P S Robinson to fully participate in the discussion and decision making relating to Bush Fire Brigades at Council meetings or Committee meetings.

The following conditions were placed on the approval:

- 1. The approval is only valid for a period of one year from the date of approval (23 August 2019). If Cr. Robinson is re-appointed as a Fire Control Officer for a further term, and he believes that he should be allowed to participate, then Council should seek a further approval and provide reasons for the request;
- 2. The approval does not permit Cr. Robinson to participate in the discussion if there is a substantial change in the nature and extent of his interests. However, if there is a significant change in the nature and extent of his interests, and he believes that he should be allowed to participate, then Council should seek a further approval and provide reasons for the request;
 - 3. Cr. Robinson is to declare the nature and extent of his interests at each meeting, with the approval provided;
 - 4. The CEO is to provide a copy of the Department's letter of approval to Cr. Robinson;
- 5. The CEO is to ensure that the declaration, including the approval given and any conditions imposed, are recorded in the minutes of each meeting; and
- 6. The approval granted is based solely on the interests disclosed by Cr. Robinson made in accordance with the application. Should other interests be identified, those interests will not be included in this approval and the financial interest provisions of the Act will apply.

Deputy President, Cr P Robinson remained in the room.

Overview

This report presents the draft 2020/21 Annual Budget for Council consideration, deliberation and endorsement. Following the endorsement of the draft Budget, the final 2020/21 Annual Budget papers will be formulated and presented to Council in the statutory format for final adoption at the 24 June 2020 Ordinary Council meeting.

Background

As part of the Integrated Planning and Reporting cycle, Council has recently reviewed and updated its four year Corporate Business Plan 2020/21 – 2023/24, and ten year Long Term Financial Plan.

The Corporate Business Plan is reviewed annually, with the first year of the Corporate Business Plan being 'sliced off' to form the basis of the draft annual budget.

The draft 2020/21 Annual Budget has therefore been prepared taking into consideration the preceding reviews and incorporates relevant elements of the various strategies, plans and resolutions adopted by Council.

This report recommends Council endorse the draft Shire of Dardanup 2020/21 Annual Budget, inclusive of the proposed 0% rate increase, Reserve transfers, workforce decreases, loans, capital works and operational expenditure. (Refer to Appendix SCM: 12.2A).

Legal Implications

Local Government Act 1995

Division 2 — Annual budget

6.2. Local government to prepare annual budget

- (1) During the period from 1 June in a financial year to 31 August in the next financial year, or such extended time as the Minister allows, each local government is to prepare and adopt*, in the form and manner prescribed, a budget for its municipal fund for the financial year ending on the 30 June next following that 31 August.
- * Absolute majority required.
- (2) In the preparation of the annual budget the local government is to have regard to the contents of the plan for the future of the district made in accordance with section 5.56 and to prepare a detailed estimate for the current year of
 - (a) the expenditure by the local government; and
 - (b) the revenue and income, independent of general rates, of the local government; and
 - (c) the amount required to make up the deficiency, if any, shown by comparing the estimated expenditure with the estimated revenue and income.
- (3) For the purposes of subsections (2)(a) and (b) all expenditure, revenue and income of the local government is to be taken into account unless otherwise prescribed.
- (4) The annual budget is to incorporate
 - (a) particulars of the estimated expenditure proposed to be incurred by the local government; and
 - (b) detailed information relating to the rates and service charges which will apply to land within the district including
 - (i) the amount it is estimated will be yielded by the general rate; and
 - (ii) the rate of interest (if any) to be charged by the local government on unpaid rates and service charges;

and

- (c) the fees and charges proposed to be imposed by the local government; and
- (d) the particulars of borrowings and other financial accommodation proposed to be entered into by the local government; and
- (e) details of the amounts to be set aside in, or used from, reserve accounts and of the purpose for which they are to be set aside or used; and
- (f) particulars of proposed land transactions and trading undertakings (as those terms are defined in and for the purpose of section 3.59) of the local government; and
- (g) such other matters as are prescribed.
- (5) Regulations may provide for
 - (a) the form of the annual budget; and
 - (b) the contents of the annual budget; and
 - (c) the information to be contained in or to accompany the annual budget.

Strategic Community Plan

- Strategy 1.3.1 Implement the Integrated Planning and Reporting Framework including the Long Term Financial Plan, Workforce Plan, Asset Management Plans and Corporate Business Plan. (Service Priority: High)
- Strategy 1.3.2 Monitor and produce statutory budgetary and financial reporting requirements applicable to local government operations. (Service Priority: High)

Environment - None.

Precedents

Each year Council prepares an annual budget for the forthcoming financial year. The annual budget is formed from year one of the Shire of Dardanup Corporate Business Plan 2020/21 – 2023/24.

Budget Implications

The budget outlines planned expenditure and revenue and determines the financial parameters for the Council to operate within for the 2020/21 financial year.

The draft budget for the year has been prepared on the basis of a 0% rate increase, which is forecast to produce an end of year surplus of \$242,731. The surplus enables Council to withstand any unforeseen financial costs or revenue reductions that may occur during the year.

The current forecast end of year surplus for 2019/20 is \$382,052, which is reflected in the opening surplus at the start of the 2020/21 financial year. This forecast will vary when the final annual financial report is produced for 2019/20, with the final result reflected in the financial statements when the 2020/21 mid-year budget review is conducted in February/March 2021.

The fees and charges when adopted will determine the amount of revenue to be received during the 2020/21 financial year for certain areas. The fees and charges revenue has been forecast in the draft budget income projections, and is based on the recent decision of Council at the Ordinary Council Meeting dated 25 March 2020, Resolution [69-20] for a 0% increase for the 2020/21 period.

After taking into consideration all other sources of income, Council is required to raise sufficient rates to meet its total expenditure. However, it is allowed to adopt a budget that has a deficit that does not exceed 10% of its rate revenue.

For the 2019/20 budget it is proposed a total of \$13,404,719 be raised from general property rates, \$243,434 for the Eaton Landscaping Specified Area Rate, and \$108,082 for the Annual Bulk Waste Collection Specified Area Rate. In addition, Council forecast Interim Rate revenue of \$91,144 for the 2020/21 financial year. The expected yield from rates will be sufficient to balance the 2020/21 budget after some adjustments have been made to increase other sources of revenue, reduce operating expenditure and to adjust the amount transferred to or from reserves.

Budget - Whole of Life Cost

While the budget contains new assets and infrastructure, this report does not deal directly with the whole of life costs of those items. Consideration of the whole of life costs relevant to those items forms part of the individual project or asset evaluation and justification.

Council Policy Compliance

Council Policy CP018 – Corporate Business Plan & Long Term Financial Plan notes that each year with the best endeavours Council aims to consider a draft budget for adoption by the end of June. To achieve this aim the draft Corporate Business Plan (budget) needs to be compiled within the last weeks of May or early June.

Risk Assessment

The Risk Management Governance Framework has been considered in arriving at the officer recommendation. Please refer to (Appendix ORD: 12.2B) for full assessment document.

Tier 2 – 'Low' or 'Moderate' Inherent Risk.			
Risk Event	Draft Annual Budget 2020/21		
Inherent Risk Rating (prior to treatment or control)	Moderate (5 - 11)		
Risk Action Plan (treatment or controls proposed)	As the Inherent Risk Rating is below 12, this is not applicable.		
Residual Risk Rating (after treatment or controls)	As the Inherent Risk Rating is below 12, this is not applicable.		
Risk Category Assessed Against	Legal and Compliance Financial	Legislative requirements and compliance determine the need for the production of the Annual Budget. The financial implications associated within the elements of the Annual Budget can affect the financial sustainability of	
	Reputational	can affect the financial sustainability of Council. The inclusion of projects and works within the various plans within the Annual Budget build community expectation.	

Officer Comment

The draft budget document follows a similar format to that intended for the final document and includes the following information:

- Financial statements including the Statement of Comprehensive Income (by Nature or Type) and (by Program), Budget Summary and Rate Setting Statement;
- Notes to and forming part of the budget including notes on operating expenditure and revenue, loan borrowings, transfers to and from reserves, rating information and grants (to be provided with the final budget document); and
- Detailed Financial Information for each Schedule at account level, with Sundry Notes providing a greater level of detail for each account. This information is formatted with the account number, description and totals for the 2020/21 Budget.

The 2020/21 draft budget has been prepared utilising the various elements that Council has previously resolved to adopt. These include:

- Strategic Community Plan;
- Long Term Financial Plan;
 - Debt Management Plan;
 - Reserve Funds;
 - Rating Strategy;

- Corporate Business Plan;
- Workforce Plan;
- Asset Management Plans;
 - Pathways;
 - Roads;
 - Parks & Reserves;
 - Buildings;
 - Stormwater Drainage;
 - Plant & Vehicles;
 - Compliance & Executive Vehicles;
 - Information Technology;
 - Recreation Centre Equipment;
- Elected Member Fees, Expenses & Allowances;
- Community Budget Requests;
- Events, Festivals & Community Services Programs;
- Community Funding Applications;
- Minor & Community Grants;
- Elected Member Budget Requests; and
- Fees & Charges Schedule.

While the 2019/20 financial year has not yet ended, the draft 2020/21 Budget document presented to Council represents the current forecast to the 30 June 2020.

The final 2020/21 Budget document is scheduled to be presented to Council and adopted at the Ordinary Council Meeting on 24 June 2020. It is not anticipated that the final budget document will vary from the current draft budget, unless Council resolves to vary any of the revenue of expenditure items presented in the draft budget.

• Rate Setting Statement

This statement shows the proposed financial position for the year, after including all operating revenue and expenditure, capital expenditure, loan repayments, transfers to and from reserves, income from sale of assets and rates (refer to page 2 of the draft budget). The statement is designed to show how much must be raised from rates to record a breakeven result.

The draft Budget for 2020/21 as presented produces a surplus of \$242,731 at the end of the financial year. There is effectively a small deficit of \$139,321 for the 12 month period, as the forecast opening surplus of \$382,052 is taken into consideration when calculating the end of year position.

If grants, revenue and the estimated brought forward surplus do not meet expectations or there are requests to increase or add expenditure items, this position will not be achievable. The other factor to be taken into account is the value of projects and items that have not been completed in 2019/20 and need to be brought forward to 2020/21 through the Carried Forward Projects Reserve. There is also the uncertainty associated with the financial impact of the Corona Virus, which may impact the annual budget beyond what has been incorporated in this document.

Rates

The draft 2020/21 Budget includes a forecast 0% increase in general and minimum rates. This in accordance with Council's previous resolution through the adoption of the Long Term Financial Plan and draft Corporate Business Plan.

Based on a 0% increase, the Gross Rental Valuation (GRV), Unimproved Valuation (UV) and Minimum Rates are included as follows:

	Unimproved Value Rate	Gross Rental Value Rate	Minimum Rate
	in Dollar	in in Dollar	
2019/20 - Current	\$0.006259	\$0.100662	\$1,547.50
2020/21 - 0% Increase	\$0.006259	\$0.100662	\$1,547.50

	Specified Area Rate Bulk	Specified Area Rate Eaton	
	Waste	Landscaping	
2019/20 - Current	\$0.001315	\$0.002925	
2020/21 – 0% Increase	\$0.001315	\$0.002925	

The 0% increase represents Council's endorsement of a 0% rates revenue increase for the 2020/21 budget, with a 0% increase in minimum rates (OCM 25 March 2020 CR 66-20). The zero per cent increase is reflected in the same Rate in the Dollar as per the 2019/20 financial year.

It should be noted that some UV properties will receive either an increase or decrease in their rates due to recent Landgate UV revaluations. Valuation methodologies and revaluations are effectively outside of Council's control, however, property owners are entitled to appeal valuations issued by Landgate should they believe their UV valuation is not correct.

At the Ordinary Council Meeting dated 25 March 2020, Council endorsed to continue with the Eaton Specified Area Rates as per the current financial year. In line with Council's decision for a 0% increase there is no increase forecast for Specified Area Rates Eaton Landscaping, and Specified Area Rate Bulk Waste in the 2020/21 financial year.

The 2020/21 draft budget also incorporates Council's decision to suspend penalty interest on outstanding rates from 26 March 2020 until 30 September 2020 (OCM 25 March 2020 CR78-20).

The Minister for Local Government recently enacted the Local Government (Covid-19 Response) Order 2020 on the 8 May 2020. A summary of the impacts related to interest charges are:

- 1. Interest on rates arrears (overdue rates) is capped at maximum of 8% (except for ratepayers assessed as being in financial hardship because of Covid-19).
- 2. Interest on Instalments remains capped at maximum of 5.5% because we have a hardship policy in place.
- 3. All ratepayers assessed as being in financial hardship because of Covid-19 are exempt from both types of interest.

The 2020/21 Draft Annual Budget has been formed taking into account the orders as issued by the Minister. Interest Rates Revenue has been budgeted at 50% less than the previous year for both Interest Rates on Arrears, and Interest Rates on Instalments. It is anticipated that Council may extend suspension of interest until 31 December 2020 and the draft budget includes this provision for reduced rates interest revenue.

• Brought Forward Position

The draft 2020/21 Budget includes an estimated brought forward surplus from 30 June 2020 of \$382,052. The surplus compares favourably with the revised budget position of \$305,473. This is primarily attributed to some revenue items exceeding budget forecasts, some expenditure items being lower than budget and the carrying forward of some capital works projects.

Staffing

A concerted effort has been made in this budget to contain staff costs in the 2020/21 budget and future years, however the Council is growing and additional staff may be required to maintain and develop Council's facilities and services to the community.

At the Integrated Planning Committee meeting held on the 13 May 2020, Council endorsed the Workforce Plan for the 2020/21 - 2029/30. The Workforce Plan identifies the full time equivalent staff required for Council's operations.

Based on the Workforce Plan, the total number of full-time equivalent (FTE) staff at the end of 2020/21 will be 115.57 FTE. The total salaries and wages cost (including superannuation) associated with the employment of 115.57 FTE's is \$10,419,147, which is a decrease of 2.86% in full-time equivalent staff from the adopted 2019/20 budget (budgeted at 118.97 FTE). The decrease in FTE can be attributed to the staffing restructure that occurred during the 2019/20 financial year.

As a result, Total Employee costs have decreased from an adopted budget of \$10,431,243 in 2019/20 to \$10,419,147 in 2020/21. Employee costs consist of direct salary and wages, annual and long service leave provisions, workers compensation insurance, training costs, superannuation contributions, uniforms and protective clothing, professional development, fringe benefits tax and any other costs related to the employment of staff.

Total insurance costs for Council, incorporating Workers Compensation and General Insurances has increased from the 2019/20 forecast of \$462,163 to \$469,964 in 2020/21.

Fringe Benefits Tax is incurred by Council for benefits provided to Council employees. The primary area of benefit provided is the private use of Council motor vehicles, with very minor costs for phone and entertainment. Fringe benefits tax is estimated to continue to reduce from an adopted budget of \$151,000 in 2019/20 to \$141,800 in 2020/21.

• (Profit)/Loss on Asset Disposals

There is no forecast profit or loss on disposal for the 2020/21 financial year. The actual profit or loss on asset disposal will be calculated during the year based on the sale price and written down asset value.

• Capital Works Programme

\$14,879,076 is to be spent in 2020/21 on the acquisition and/or construction of furniture, equipment, vehicles, plant, buildings and infrastructure assets, including carried forward projects. Council will allocate \$8,659,866 from Reserves to fund this expenditure, with the balance of funding sourced from external grants and contributions, and proceeds from the sale of assets. Refer to pages 84 to 96 of the draft budget for a detailed list of asset acquisitions, works and disposal.

Council has established Asset Management Plans for its various classes of assets, which project over a 10+ year period the required capital upgrade, expansion and renewal requirements. These Asset Management Plans include the regular transfer of funds to Reserves to ensure the Council's cash flow requirements can be met each year.

These Asset Management Plans were considered and adopted by Council at the Integrated Planning Committee meeting on the 13 May 2020, and subsequent Council meeting on the 27 May 2020.

Of the \$14,879,076 capital expenditure budget, the following is the breakdown based on Asset Category:

- Asset Renewal \$2,639,437 (17.7%);
- Asset Upgrade \$5,221,012 (35.1%); and
- New Assets \$7,018,628 (47.2%).

• Loan Borrowings

The 2020/21 budget includes the raising of one new loan during the year of \$750,000 (refer to page 81 of the draft budget). These funds are to be utilised over a three year period to pay for the creation and management of the WANJU Developer Contribution Plan. Funds are to be utilised to pay for Project Management, consultancy and administrative costs directly attributed to the Developer Contribution Plan.

Council will continue to repay existing loans during the year, with total Principal payments of \$250,116 and Interest/Government Guarantee Fee payments of \$97,965.

Reserves

Transfers to reserves are expected to total \$4,428,917 for the 2020/21 year. Reserve Interest of \$271,376 is forecast to be earned on cash backed reserves during 2020/21, with 50% returned to the municipal fund. This compares with the forecast interest for 2019/20 of \$312,957. This reduced earnings forecast is attributed to lower interest rates, reduced cash reserves and future impact of market conditions, including COVID-19 factors.

Transfers from reserves (including carried forward projects) totalling \$8,659,866 are primarily used for capital projects.

Reserve transfers are detailed in the explanatory information of the draft budget document (refer to page 97 to 102 of the draft budget), together with the various Reserve balances.

The 2020/21 Budget expects less funds to be transferred to reserves than is in from reserves. If the reserve transfers proceed as budgeted the expected balance of reserves at 30 June 2021 will be \$13,277,200 and is a decrease on the expected balance at the start of the year of \$17,508,149.

Revenue and Expenditure Explanatory Information

This area of the budget primarily represents the operating expenditure and revenue for the coming year.

Schedule 3 - General Purpose Funding

In accordance with Council's previous resolution through the adoption of the Long Term Financial Plan and draft Corporate Business Plan, the draft budget has been set with a 0.0% increase in the rate in the dollar and a 0.0% increase to all minimum rates so that minimum rate for all properties will continue to be levied at \$1,547.50.

The WA Local Government Grants Commission (WALGGC) has not yet finalised the grants for 2020/21. Interim advice received from the Department Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries (DLGSCI) indicate that the 2020/21 grant allocation will reflect the 2019/20 grant funds received. Management has undertaken a conservative approach and forecast a 2.0% increase in the Financial Assistance Grants revenue as per the actual 2019/20 figures.

It is expected that Council will receive General Purpose Grant revenue of \$1,023,014 and Local Roads Grant revenue of \$569,698, noting that approximately 50% of these grant funds have been received in May 2020, and subsequently will be transferred to the Unspent Grants Reserve.

Interest earned on investments is expected to be as per 2020/21 budget estimates. Investments are placed in accordance with Council's investment policy and are limited to secure and liquid investment options such as term deposits. The 2020/21 budget forecasts Municipal Fund interest of \$74,337, and Reserve Fund interest of \$271,376. Reserve Fund interest is accumulated throughout the year with 50%

distributed across all of Council's Reserve Accounts at year-end, and the balance returned to the municipal fund.

Total interest earnings for the Council, inclusive of interest charge on instalments and overdue rates, is budgeted to be \$420,971, which is a reduction on the budget estimate for 2019/20 of \$507,656. Low interest rates on investments (term deposits) and reduction of interest on rates are significant factors in this estimate.

• Schedule 4 – Governance

Schedule 4 contains the provision for Members of Council expenditure which includes the President/Councillor Meeting Attendance Fees combined budget of \$109,395 – which includes no increase from the 2019/20 financial year. In addition, Councillors are entitled to an annual Telecommunications allowance of \$2,450 per Councillor as adopted by Council. Councillor training and conference expenditure is budgeted at \$23,006.

Forecast expenditure of \$31,200 is budgeted for Council Refreshments/Receptions which Council meeting meals, regional meetings plus general refreshments (sundry items for both Council and staff kitchen areas). Total Audit Fees expenditure is forecast at \$35,130 and comprises of Council's audit contract \$22,130, plus grant acquittals and the Audit Regulation 17 review scheduled for 2020/21.

• Schedule 5 – Law, Order & Public Safety

Emergency Services Levy (ESL) expenditure and revenue is recorded in the Fire Prevention section of the draft annual budget. Council estimates ESL expenditure across all eight brigades of \$131,700 which is funded through DFES's (Department Fire Emergency Services) ESL program. ESL levies are raised through Council's rating system and subsequently the funds collected are remitted to DFES.

The draft budget also includes the design works for Dardanup Central Bushfire Brigade Station at \$43,941, Wellington Mills Bushfire Brigade Station works for new amenities and shower facility construction at \$47,720, and the carried forward Waterloo Bushfire Brigade Station project. All projects are 100% funded by DFES.

Ranger Services and Emergency Services staff are contained within Law, Order & Public Safety. Budgeted salaries and wages are spread over Animal Control and Other Law, Order and Public Safety to a combined salaries including superannuation budget of \$423,232. Animal Management Program expenditure includes a budget allocation of \$5,250 in the draft budget. Dog and Cat Registration revenue is budgeted at \$60,000 and \$7,000 respectively, whilst Animal Infringements fines is forecast at \$15,000 for 2020/21.

Council is also responsible for the administration and employment of the DFES funded Bushfire Risk Management Coordinator role.

• Schedule 7 - Health

The Health program covers maternal and infant health expenditure which incorporates Council's building maintenance costs for the Eaton Family Centre.

Preventative Services contains all expenditure relating to Health Administration and Inspections. Health fees and charges are forecast at a reduced \$2,000 for 2020/21, budgeted at \$20,000 in 2019/20, however, due to the impact COVID-19 – it is anticipated that Council would be supportive of not charging the Annual Food Business Fee for businesses located within the Shire of Dardanup for the 2020/21 financial year.

Pest Control expenditure is budgeted at \$2,600 for Mosquito Control, and \$5,000 contribution towards the 2020/21 Leschenault CLAG contribution scheme administered by the City of Bunbury.

• Schedule 8 – Education & Welfare

Education and Welfare comprises of operational expenditure and revenue attributed to Education, Aged & Disabled Care, and Other Welfare. Annual School Awards are a budgeted donation totalling \$1,350 where Council contributes towards both primary and secondary school awards. In additional Council donates \$5,722 towards the Chaplaincy Program at Eaton Community College and Eaton Primary School.

Aged and Disabled expenditure includes a budgeted maintenance costs of \$3,576 for the Eaton Senior Citizens Centre are also reported in this area.

Other Welfare expenditure and revenues pertains to costs relating to Culture & Community Services. The Community Services Programs expenditure, as listed on page 29 of the draft budget, is forecast at \$44,000 and includes the annual Leeuwin Scholarships, Skateboard Competitions, Minor and Community Event Assistance, and Minor Community Activities.

Donation expenses is budgeted at \$41,457 which includes donations to various community groups and projects, Seniors Christmas Dinners, and Council's Personal Development Scheme.

Schedule 10 – Community Amenities

Community Amenities encompasses Sanitation, Refuse, Protection of Environment, Town Planning and Regional Development, and Other Community Amenities expenditure and revenue.

The total provision for all Sanitation Household expenditure including kerbside refuse and recycling removal and disposal, processing and operational Refuse Site expenditure is budgeted at \$1,413,972.

Domestic Refuse and Recycling levies are budgeted at a combined \$1,253,023 in the 2020/21 draft budget. In addition to the rubbish and recycling levies, Council has forecast Specified Area Rate (SAR) - Bulk Waste Collection revenue of \$108,082 of which \$76,082 is allocated to the Bulk Waste Collection, and \$32,000 contribution to the Transfer Station.

Revenue for Refuse Site Fees and Charges is budgeted at \$66,572 for 2020/21 financial year, which is a small decrease on the previous year's forecast.

Environmental Expenditure is budgeted at \$66,000 and incorporates expenditures on projects including declared weeds management, revegetation projects, grant seed funding (match funding grant expenditure) and other projects as determined by management. The full extent of works will be further defined in the Environmental Management Plan which is expected to be finalised in 2020/21. This allocation was increased from \$50,000 in the previous year, based on the outcome of Council's deliberations at the Councillor Budget Request workshop.

Town Planning expenditure items include \$76,575 for Consultancy, consisting of \$10,000 for Wanju Studies which is funded from the Wanju Loan Funds, \$50,000 various Town Planning projects, and \$16,575 for Demographic Data Reporting. A sundry provision of \$5,000 is allocated for Land Development Expenses as detailed on page 43 of the draft budget (refer Note 106.1 and 106.2). Town Planning Application revenue is budgeted at \$50,000 in 2020/21, which is a reduction from the previous year's forecast of \$70,000; due primarily to slower economy and reduced planning activity.

Other Community Amenities includes operational expenditure on Dardanup and Ferguson cemeteries' maintenance, disability services expenditure, public toilets maintenance and street furniture maintenance.

The draft budget includes the capital projects totalling \$81,602 for the Gnomesville Public Toilets which is funded from the Tourism WA grant held in Council's Trust Fund.

• Schedule 11 – Recreation & Culture

Recreation and Culture includes Public Halls, Parks Gardens and Reserves, Eaton Recreation Centre, Eaton and Dardanup Libraries and Other Culture.

As detailed on page 106 of the draft budget, Appendix C – Building Maintenance and Minor Works Program includes public hall budget maintenance of \$93,320. Included in this figure is the estimated 2020/21 operational expenditure of \$39,229 on the Dardanup Hall, which is partly offset by budgeted Dardanup Hall hire revenue of \$6,000.

The adopted 10 year Building Asset Management Plan 2020/21 – 2029/30 includes building capital expenditure projects, some of which have been carried over, including the Eaton Bowling Club Rooms, Eaton Oval Club Rooms, and the Eaton Skate Park.

Parks, Gardens and Reserves operational expenditure is budgeted at \$3,209,409 for Reserves detailed on page 108 'Appendix E – Parks & Reserves Maintenance and Minor Works Expenditure'.

Parks and Reserves capital expenditure is budgeted at \$415,856 and is part funded by Reserve transfers, grants and the Specified Area Rate (SAR) for Eaton Landscaping. The SAR collected through Council's rating function has been partly allocated to Watson Reserve Filtration System as detailed on page 91 of the budget document.

Operating Revenue includes a budget provision of \$243,434 for Specified Area Rate for Eaton Landscaping allocated to Millbridge Public Open Space Maintenance \$143,434 and Eaton Parks and Reserves Upgrades of \$100,000.

The Eaton Recreation Centre (ERC) operating deficit for 2020/21 is forecast to be \$457,713. Operational expenditure including building maintenance, but excluding administration overheads, profit/loss on disposal and depreciation, is budgeted at \$1,556,524 and is partially offset by budget revenue of \$1,098,811. A full breakdown of ERC 2020/21 draft budget is included on pages 47 and 48, and by cost centre on page 57.

• Schedule 12 - Transport

Road Maintenance expenditure is budgeted at \$1,660,909, Bridges Maintenance \$110,266 and Ancillary Maintenance of \$397,374.

Capital Transport Projects are forecast at a total \$7,717,903 for Road Upgrades, Renewals and Pathway projects. Transport Grant Revenue is budgeted at \$300,000 in Black Spot Funding, \$1,654,095 in Regional Road Group Funding, \$316,016 for Roads to Recovery projects, and \$18,319 Pathway Grants, and \$122,333 in Main Roads Direct Grants.

The Transport Budget also includes a provision of additional grant funding of \$352,000 from the Local Roads and Community Infrastructure Programs. It is anticipated that Council will support bringing forward Pathway projects that are scheduled in future years to meet the funding criteria. If supported, the additional funding for these projects will enable a reduced transfer to the Pathways reserve and a corresponding increased transfer to the Building Reserve in future years.

Transport Construction Expenditure also includes several carried forward capital road upgrade and renewal projects which are funded from the Carried Forward Projects reserve.

• Schedule 13 – Economic Services

Economic Services contains expenditures and revenues for Tourism and Area Promotion, Building Control and Other Economic Services. Budgeted Tourism donations totalling \$71,000 and Economic Development contributions of \$42,000 are included in the draft annual budget.

Building Licence revenue is budgeted at \$80,000 for 2020/21 financial year, and Swimming Pool levies is forecast at \$11,802 in 2020/21.

• Schedule 14 – Other Property & Services

Administration Overheads, Public Works Overheads, Plant Operation and Salaries and Wages are reported in the Other Property & Services Function. Significant budget forecasts include workers compensation insurance budget of \$161,497, Equipment Leasing Expenditure of \$260,251 which includes IT Equipment leased as per IT Asset Management Plan, and Software Licencing Expenses \$490,696.

Summary

The draft budget for 2020/21 is balanced and Councillors are encouraged to examine the document thoroughly. Councillors are welcome to contact the Deputy Chief Executive Officer or Manager Financial Services prior to the Special Council meeting to discuss any questions.

<u>Council Role</u> - Executive/Strategic.

Voting Requirements - Simple Majority/Absolute Majority for final adoption

Change to Officer Recommendation

As per Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996 11(da) Council records the following reasons for amending the Officer Recommended Resolution:

Resolution to be broken up into separate parts to allow elected members to participate without having to leave the room for all matters, where some interest arises.

OFFICER RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION

THAT Council adopt the Shire of Dardanup Draft 2020/21 Budget (Appendix SCM: 12.2A) inclusive of the following:

- An increase in general rate in the dollar and minimum rates of 0%;
- Revenue generated from the adopted Schedule of Fees and Charges for 2020/21;
- Elected members Fees, Expenses and Allowances;
- Reserve transfers;
- Current and proposed loans;
- Capital expenditure in accordance with the various Asset Management Plans; and
- Operating income and Expenditure as presented in Schedules 3 to 14.

Discussion:

Shire President, Cr. M T Bennett advised that the resolution was to be broken up into separate topics to ensure that councillors who had declared an interest in part of the item, would be able to remain in the room for the remaining topics.

Shire President Cr. M T Bennett advised the meeting that all public schools within the Shire have a Chaplain including Eaton Community College, Dardanup Primary School, River Valley Primary School, Eaton Primary School and Glenhuon Primary School.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST

Chief Executive Officer, Mr. André Schönfeldt declared a Proximity Interest in "Item 12.2 – Draft Annual Budget 2020-21" as page 108 of the Annual Budget under Parks and Reserves includes maintenance to a reserve that adjoins his property. Mr Schönfeldt advised that he would leave the room for the remainder of the meeting.

Discussion:

Cr. Dow asked if Councillors could vote to have him remain in the room for the remainder of the meeting. As a result the following procedural motion was passed.

OFFICER RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION & COUNCIL RESOLUTION

154-20 MOVED - Cr. C N Boyce SECONDED - Cr. J Dow

THAT Council request the Chief Executive Officer, André Schönfeldt to remain in the room for the remainder of Item 12.2 – Draft Annual Budget 2020-21.

CARRIED 8/0

DECLARATION OF INTEREST

Mr. André Schönfeldt read aloud the Declarations of Interest that had previously been declared.

Refer page 7 of the minutes.

OFFICER RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION & COUNCIL RESOLUTION "A"

155-20

MOVED -

Cr. C N Boyce

SECONDED -

Cr. P S Robinson

THAT Council adopt an increase in the general rate in the dollar and minimum rates of 0% for the Shire of Dardanup Draft 2020/21 Budget (Appendix SCM: 12.2A).

CARRIED

8/0

OFFICER RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION & COUNCIL RESOLUTION "B"

156-20

MOVED -

Cr. P S Robinson

SECONDED -

Cr. P R Perks

THAT Council adopt Revenue generated from the adopted Schedule of Fees and Charges for 2020/21 for the Shire of Dardanup Draft 2020/21 Budget (Appendix SCM: 12.2A).

CARRIED

8/0

OFFICER RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION & COUNCIL RESOLUTION "C"

157-20

MOVED -

Cr. P S Robinson

SECONDED -

Cr. C N Boyce

THAT Council adopt Elected Members Fees, Expenses and Allowances as contained within the Shire of Dardanup Draft 2020/21 Budget (Appendix SCM: 12.2A).

CARRIED

8/0

OFFICER RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION & COUNCIL RESOLUTION "D"

158-20

MOVED -

Cr. P R Perks

SECONDED -

Cr. T G Gardiner

THAT Council adopt the Reserve Transfers as contained within the Shire of Dardanup Draft 2020/21 Budget (Appendix SCM: 12.2A).

> **CARRIED** 5/3

FOR THE MOTION	AGAINST THE MOTION
Cr. M T Bennett	Cr. J Dow
Cr. P S Robinson	Cr. M Hutchinson
Cr. T G Gardiner	Cr. S L Gillespie
Cr. C N Boyce	•
Cr PR Perks	

OFFICER RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION & COUNCIL RESOLUTION "E"

159-20 MOVED - Cr. T G Gardiner SECONDED - Cr. P S Robinson

THAT Council adopt the 'Current and Proposed Loans as contained within the Shire of Dardanup Draft 2020/21 Budget (Appendix SCM: 12.2A).

CARRIED

8/0

OFFICER RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION & COUNCIL RESOLUTION "F"

160-20 MOVED - Cr. P S Robinson SECONDED - Cr. P R Perks

THAT Council adopt the 'Operating Income and Expenditure as presented in Schedules 3 to 14' as contained within the Shire of Dardanup Draft 2020/21 Budget (Appendix SCM: 12.2A).

CARRIED

5/3

FOR THE MOTION	AGAINST THE MOTION
Cr. M T Bennett	Cr. J Dow
Cr. P S Robinson	Cr. M Hutchinson
Cr. T G Gardiner	Cr. S L Gillespie
Cr. C N Boyce	
Cr. P R Perks	

DECLARATION OF INTEREST

Shire President – Cr. M T Bennett, Cr. C N Boyce and Cr. S L Gillespie left the room [3.33pm] having previously declared an interest – Refer page 7 of the minutes.

Deputy Shire President, Cr. P S Robinson assumed the chair [3.33pm].

OFFICER RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION & COUNCIL RESOLUTION "G"

161-20 MOVED - Cr. P R Perks SECONDED - Cr. T G Gardiner

THAT Council adopt the 'Transport & Infrastructure Asset Construction/Acquisition Income & Expenditure' contained within the Shire of Dardanup Draft 2020/21 Budget (Appendix SCM: 12.2A).

CARRIED 4/1

Note: Cr. C N Boyce returned to room [3.34pm].

OFFICER RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION & COUNCIL RESOLUTION "H"

162-20 MOVED - Cr. P R Perks SECONDED - Cr. T G Gardiner

THAT Council adopt the 'Land & Buildings Asset Construction/Acquisition Income & Expenditure' contained within the Shire of Dardanup Draft 2020/21 Budget (Appendix SCM: 12.2A).

CARRIED 4/2

FOR THE MOTION	AGAINST THE MOTION
Cr. P S Robinson	Cr. J Dow
Cr. T G Gardiner	Cr. M Hutchinson
Cr. C N Boyce	
Cr. P R Perks	

OFFICER RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION & COUNCIL RESOLUTION "I"

163-20 MOVED - Cr. C N Boyce SECONDED - Cr. T G Gardiner

THAT Council adopt the 'Parks & Reserves Asset Construction/Acquisition Income & Expenditure' contained within the Shire of Dardanup Draft 2020/21 Budget (Appendix SCM: 12.2A).

CARRIED 6/0

Note: Shire President, Cr. M T Bennett and Cr. S L Gillespie returned to the room [3.39pm].

Deputy Shire President, Cr. P S Robinson read aloud resolutions "G. H & I" to Cr. M T Bennett and Cr. S L Gillespie as they were not present for the voting.

Shire President, Cr. M T Bennett assumed the Chair [3.40pm].

Director Sustainable Development – Susan Oosthuizen left the meeting [3.40pm].

OFFICER RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION & COUNCIL RESOLUTION "J"

164-20 MOVED - Cr. P S Robinson SECONDED - Cr. T G Gardiner

THAT Council adopt the 'Vehicles Asset Construction/Acquisition Income & Expenditure' contained within the Shire of Dardanup Draft 2020/21 Budget (Appendix SCM: 12.2A).

CARRIED

5/3

FOR THE MOTION	AGAINST THE MOTION
Cr. M T Bennett	Cr. J Dow
Cr. P S Robinson	Cr. M Hutchinson
Cr. T G Gardiner	Cr. S L Gillespie
Cr. C N Boyce	
Cr. P R Perks	

OFFICER RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION & COUNCIL RESOLUTION "K"

165-20 MOVED - Cr. P S Robinson SECONDED - Cr. C N Boyce

THAT Council adopt the 'Plant & Equipment Asset Construction/Acquisition Income & Expenditure' contained within the Shire of Dardanup Draft 2020/21 Budget (Appendix SCM: 12.2A).

CARRIED

7/1

OFFICER RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION & COUNCIL RESOLUTION "L"

166-20 MOVED - Cr. P R Perks SECONDED - Cr. P S Robinson

THAT Council adopt the 'Furniture & Fittings Asset Construction/Acquisition Income & Expenditure' contained within the Shire of Dardanup Draft 2020/21 Budget (Appendix SCM: 12.2A).

CARRIED

8/0

None.

14 NEW BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE INTRODUCED BY DECISION OF MEETING

None.

15 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

None.

16 MATTERS BEHIND CLOSED DOORS

None.

17 CLOSURE OF MEETING

Shire President, Cr. M T Bennett thanked Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Mr Phil Anastasakis and the Corporate Team for all of the work they have done in preparing the Draft Annual Budget for the 2020-21 Financial Year. Cr. M T Bennett advised that he would feel comfortable in going into the 24 June 2020 Ordinary Council Meeting to approve the 2020-21 Annual Budget.

The Presiding Officer advised that the date of the next Ordinary Meeting of Council will be Wednesday 24 June 2020, commencing at 5.00pm at the Shire of Dardanup – Administration Centre Eaton.

There being no further business the Presiding Officer declared the meeting closed [3:43pm].



CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

"As the person presiding at the meeting at which these minutes were confirmed on 24 June 2020, I certify that these minutes have been confirmed as a true and accurate record of proceedings.

DocuSigned by:

Signed

C8639D26FBD24E0...

(Chairman or Shire President or Other Presiding Officer)